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ITEM 3 

 
 

Town of Kittery Maine 
Town Planning Board Meeting 

October 26, 2017 
 
88 Pepperrell Road – The Bistro - Business Use Change Review 
Action: Approve or deny plan. Owner, Chatham Street, LLC, and applicant, Ann Kendall, are establishing 
a new business entity in an existing facility where intensity of use is significantly different, located at 88 
Pepperrell Cove (Tax Map 27 Lot 49) in the Business Local (B-L) and Shoreland Overlay (OZ-SL-250’) 
Zones.  
 
 
Background 
The proposed development is part of a property-wide redevelopment effort that consists of the interior 
renovation of the three existing buildings, “The View” (previously Captain Simeons), “The Bistro” 
(previously Frisbee’s Market), and “Frisbee’s Wharf” (previously Lobster in the Rough), located at 88 
Pepperrell Cove. The existing/previous uses on site were retail, residential, storage, office and restaurant.  
 
The proposed development being considered by the Board is the conversion of existing Frisbee market 
space listed on the town’s Tax Card (attached) as stores or retail space along with an apartment.  The 
Board reviewed this property earlier in the year for the applicant’s proposed renovations to the lower level 
of the existing restaurant (The View) building, a small store and take-out ice cream restaurant to be 
named “Provisions”. Both retail businesses and restaurants needed a special exception use approval by the 
Board since it’s located in the Shoreland Overlay Zone, which the Board approved. 
 
 
Staff Review 
 

1. The purpose of this review is to consider if the proposed change from retail (the Frisbee Store) to 
restaurant (the Bistro) is significantly different in intensity of use.  The applicable provision in the 
Town Code is 16.10.3.6.3 below:  

 
16.10.3.6 Business Use Review. 
All business use including the following must be reviewed by the CEO and Town Planner to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of this Code including: 
1. Movement of an existing commercial or business entity from like to like facilities/use where 
major building/site modifications are not made; 
2. Movement of an existing commercial or business use into related facility/use buildings; 
3. Establishment of new commercial or business entity in an existing facility where intensity of 
use is not significantly different. 

 
2. A business use review that conforms to this provision is not subject to Planning Board Review per 

16.10.3.2: 
 

16.10.3.2 Other Development Review. 
Unless subject to a Shoreland Development Plan Review per 16.10.3.4, the following do not 
require Planning Board approval: 
A. Single and duplex family dwellings. 
B. Expansion of existing use where the expanded use will require fewer than six additional 
parking spaces. 
C. Division of land into lots (i.e., two lots) which division is not otherwise subject to Planning 
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Board review as a subdivision.  
D. Business use as provided in Section 16.4.3.5. 

 
3. Per Title 16.4.3.5 below, Staff may refer to Planning Board a business use change application for 

their consideration. 
 

16.4.3.5 Business Use Changes. 
The Planner and the Code Enforcement Officer are to review and approve, or refer to the Planning 
Board for action, all business use changes which occur that fall below Planning Board review 
thresholds as outlined in Sections 16.10.3.2 and 16.10.3.6. Approval must be based on 
compliance with all requirements of this Code. 
 

4. The applicant has submitted a parking summary that demonstrates the sites existing 108 parking 
spaces is adequate for all the proposed uses of the four new businesses (Provisions, The Wharf, The 
View and The Bistro).  The summary has some minor inaccuracies that need correcting, however, the 
total still appears to be sufficient.  The changes include: 

a. adding the ice cream take-out area in the proposed Provisions to the total gross retail square 
area, resulting in 500 s.f. rather than 475.  The number of parking spaces incurred still remains the 
same. 
b. revise the totals to conform to the method for calculating parking per 16.8.9.4.D: 
When determination of the number of parking spaces required results in a requirement of a fractional space, 
any fraction of one-half or less may be disregarded, while a fraction in excess of one-half is counted as one 
parking space. 

 
Recommendation 
The Board needs to determine the following: 

1. When considering the proposed change of use, is the intensity of use is not significantly different?  
Staff considers change is more intensive and since the property, though zoned Business Local, is 
located in close proximity of a residential community.   

2. If the Board determines it is not significantly different then, the Board may refer it back Staff to 
review it as a business use change review or decide to review it and take action, per 16.4.3.5 that 
is needed to be in compliance with the Code. 

3. If the Board determines it is significantly different then the Board can review it as a Site Plan and 
would follow the appropriate review and noticing/public hearing requirements in Title 16. 

 
Staff recommends the Board reviews it as a business use change with the following considerations: 
a) The customer access area for the restaurant, The Wharf, which is the outdoor seating area that includes 
the former picnic tables, is reduced in size so that new area can only accommodate the proposed 51 seats 
and corresponding 17 parking spaces (765 square feet). 
b) As a condition of approval the applicant prepares a revised site plan that demonstrates the current 
outdoor seating area for The Wharf, approximately 1900 square feet, reduced to 765 square feet. 
 
Action 
With consideration of Staff comments and recommendation #2 and other requirements the Board may 
determine, the Planning Board may conditionally approve the Business Use Change application 
(suggested motion provided below).  
 
Move to approve with conditions the Business Use Change Application  dated September 21, 2017 from 
owner Chatham Street, LLC and applicant Ann Kendall for 88 Pepperrell Cove (Tax Map 27 Lot 49) in 
the Business Local and Shoreland Overlay Zones upon the reading and voting, in the affirmative, on 
the Findings of Fact.  
 

< draft findings of fact will be provide at the meeting> 











 
October 17, 2017 

 

CJ Architects 
233 Vaughan Street, Suite 101 Portsmouth NH 03801 (603) 431 2808 www.cjarchitects.net        
 

 
Christopher Di Matteo 
Town Planner 
200 Rogers Road 
Kittery Maine 03904 
 
Hi Chris, 
 
The parking for the 88 Pepperrell Road site has been calculated per the Town of Kittery Off-street 
parking standards as follows: 

Provisions                            3 SPACES 
- Per Zoning (Retail):  

425 gross SF Retail divided by 175 SF of gross floor area = 2.42 
1 parking space for each 175 SF of gross floor area = 3 SPACES 
 
Bistro                                    37 SPACES 

- Per Zoning (Restaurant): 
 1,634 net SF floor area with customer access divided by 15 SF = 109 seats. 
 1 parking space for each 3 seats = 109 seats divided by 3 = 36.3 spaces (37 SPACES). 
 
The View                             47 SPACES 
                - Per Zoning (Restaurant):       
2,093 net SF floor area with customer access divided by 15 SF = 140 seats. 
1 parking space for each 3 seats = 140 seats divided by 3 = 46.7 spaces (47 SPACES). 
 
The Wharf                           17 SPACES 
                - Per Zoning:   Outdoor area will be limited to 51 seats by landscaping (17 spaces multiplied by 3 
seats per space = 51 seats). 
 
Dwelling Units (2)            4 SPACES 

- No change to existing. 
 
TOTAL SPACES                  108 SPACES       (matches Kittery Town Planner’s Comments dated 9/9/2010) 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Carla Goodknight, AIA, NCARB, NH, ME, MA  
Principal Architect : CJ Architects 
carla@cjarchitects.net 
 

http://www.cjarchitects.net
mailto:carla@cjarchitects.net





























